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Questions and Answers

1. Question: The Specifications mention Annual/Perennial Color - under 3.2.10.13 Maintain Flower Beds.  Are there any measurements on the bed areas with flowers and total number of planters. Of these areas which are annual flowers vs. perennial? Also what is the number of color rotations/change out per year, if any? 
1. Answer: See attachment 4.11 – Acreage and Historical Workload, and the drawings on the Technical Reference Library (TRL). Most of the beds are a mix of annual and perennial. There is no requirement on the number of color rotations/change outs per year.

2. Question: In the specifications LEED Buildings are mentioned, do any of the locations have SMART Irrigation systems? 
2. Answer: Buildings 12 and 20 are the only buildings with SMART irrigation systems.

3. Question: In regard to irrigation repairs and plant material, I understand if the contractor causes damage it is the responsibility of the contractor to replace at their cost. If damage to irrigation or plant material is not caused by the contractor will we still be responsible for replacement costs or will this situation fall under IDIQ?
3. Answer: Failures under normal working conditions are considered repairs and covered under the completion form section of the contract.  Failures caused by damage or neglect of the Contractor shall be repaired at the Contractor’s own expense.  Failures caused by others (i.e. NASA employees, other contractors, or even animals) will be repaired via an IDIQ task order.
4. Question: Area C locations mention mowing frequency at 2 times per year and that Hay baling is acceptable and permitted. Is the contractor required to bale hay? 

4. Answer: As per the SOW, mowing is required; however, the contractor may choose to bale and remove the hay instead.
5. Question: Per section 3.2.10.12.2 Fertilization - Can we be provided with a copy of the American Hydrotech Maintenance Plan for the Building 12 Garden Roof? Also, is there a cost to the contractor for consultation with the HGR Rep? 

5. Answer: The American Hydrotech Maintenance Plan will be uploaded to Technical Reference Library (TRL) prior to the RFP being issued.  The requirement for consultation with the HGR representative will be removed from the SOW in the Final RFP.  The contractor may consult as they deem necessary with the Hydrotech Garden Roof (HGR) Rep at their own expense.
6. Question: Is the irrigation system for the 50 Acres at JSC and 3 Acres at SCTF mentioned in Section 4, Attachment 4.11 fully functional without manual operation? If not, what is the percentage of area not operational?
6. Answer: The systems are a mix of manual and automatic control; approximately 90% manual and 10% automatic.
7. Question: Please explain why the pricing templates require such a significant amount of pricing detail when the ultimate contract will be on a bottom line FFP basis?  With such a small number of FTE's required to perform this effort, the amount of information requested in the pricing template appears excessive.
7. Answer: We have reviewed the pricing model for this effort and the pricing template #1 will be updated in the final RFP to require less detail. 

8. Question: 3.6.5 and 3.6.6 Mowing of Right of Ways and Fire Lines:  Is the frequency of this under the area C, 2 times per year?
8. Answer:  The two SOW elements referenced in the question are not under Area C classification, but are under 3.6 Site Wide Vegetation Control.  SOW 3.6.5 –states the requirement is to keep the height of all overhead rights of way to under 2 feet.  SOW 3.6.6 – states the frequency of mowing fire lanes along the perimeter fence is monthly.
9. Question: 3.2.10.7 and 3.2.10.8 The frequency for pruning hedges is every 3 weeks in 3.2.10.7 and the pruning shrubs is 2 times per year.  Can you specify areas that are shrubs, or what defines a hedge.
9. Answer: Attachment 4.11 provides a description on what is considered a shrub and what is a hedge.   Please see the TRL for drawings. 

10. Question: Will the current irrigation system be turned over in proper working condition or are there any conditions of the system that will be in need of repair at the time of the award.
10. Answer: The system is to be turned over in proper working condition.  Actual conditions will be assessed during the phase-in period, and if repairs are needed after contract start, an IDIQ Task Order will be issued to cover repairs.  

11. Question: It is my understanding that the current system has to be ran completely manually.  Is this true?

11. Answer: See answer to Question #6. 
12. Question: 3.2.10.11.2.2 What is the square footage of the natural lawn and GrassPave areas at the Astronaut Quarantine Facility (AQF) building.
12. Answer: Please refer to drawing L-27-1 in the TRL for the square footage. 
13. Question: 3.2.10.12.2 Fertilization of Garden Roof.  This does not list the number of applications or type of fertilizer to be used.  Can you be more specific or at least give what has been done in the past.

13. Answer: Please refer to the American Hydrotech Maintenance Plan for the Building 12 Garden Roof located on the TRL for this information.
14. Question: 3.7.6  Removal of Dead Trees :  This does not have expected quantities or tree sizes to be removed.  Could we have more specific perimeters, for example pricing according to size with an indefinite quantity?  To remove 10, 4” caliber trees is far less expensive than to remove 10, 30” caliber trees. 
14. Answer: See attachment 4.11 for the estimated quantities of trees. The approximate average caliper sizes for common trees on site are:

· Crepe Myrtle 4"

· Oak 18"

· Ash 10"

· Pecan 12"

This is not a comprehensive list of the types of trees that we have onsite, but provides an approximate average of the caliper range. Most of the trees on site are roughly 45 years old and may be larger than the averages listed. 
The offeror is expected to estimate the quantities of trees to be removed, based upon their experience with working with these types of trees and quantities.

15. Question: 3.2.8  It appears in this section that the contractor will be responsible for identifying pest and the pest control application.  During the site visit it was implied that the application would be an ID/IQ. Can you clarify?
15. Answer: Pest control application is not an IDIQ task but falls under the completion form portion of the contract. The Contractor is required to submit an Integrated Pest Management Plan in accordance with DRD-01 which includes identification and application of pest control. 
16. Question: 4.8  What are the types of wildflower seeds and native grass seeds used in the past.   Historically what are the quantities and square footage used.
16. Answer: Wildflower support is under the IDIQ portion of the contract for which requirements will be provided at the time of the request.  This effort is not to be considered a part of the completion form services of this contract.
17. Question: 3.2.2  In the improved area turf is to be mowed every 2 weeks April - Oct.  Is it acceptable to divide this into 2 sections with each to be maintained every other week.  For example EF, SCTF, 300 section and 400 section one week and the mall and main entrance to be done the next week.  
17. Answer: The contractor is responsible for proposing, per DRD – 001, their method for supporting the turf area to meet contract requirements.
18. Question: In order to prepare for the scheduled Jan. 14th pre-proposal conference what should we prepare ourselves to cover? Are we going to actually go over particular items, request for services etc., technical items?

18. Answer: Offerors are not required to present or prepare anything for the pre-proposal conference.  The Government will be discussing the elements of the RFP.  In attendance will be subject matter experts from various disciplines (i.e. Technical, Procurement, Labor Relations, Property, etc.) to discuss key points from their area.  Potential Offerors are encouraged to read the RFP prior to the pre-proposal conference.
[End]
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